
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 
City Council Workshop & Meeting   

September 12, 2016 
Agenda 

                                    
 
                                                                             
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Spring Street Project – Rick Whiting and Ethan Boxer-Macomber (45 minutes) 
 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting  
 
Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Pross 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one 
motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If 
requested, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the 
agenda.   

 
1. Order 56-09122016*  

Accepting the transfer of $1,601.00 in forfeiture assets in U.S. currency to the Auburn Police 
Department (Anthony Barrome). 
 

2. Order 57-09122016*  
 Accepting the transfer of $1,561.00 in forfeiture assets in U.S. currency to the Auburn Police Department 
(Hector Jimenez). 
 

3. Order 58-09122016*  
Setting the time to open the polls at 7:00 A.M. for the November 8, 2016 election. 

 
II.    Minutes  

 August 15, 2016 Regular Council Meeting  
 
III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  - None 

IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 
City business which is not on this agenda.   

 

 Public Input – City Manager Search 
                   

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

V.       Unfinished Business 
  
1. Ordinance 06-08152016  

Zoning amendment for Evergreen Subaru from Suburban Residential to General Business. 
Second reading. 

 
VI.     New Business  

 
2. Order 59-09122016  

Approving the City funding request for the Spring Street project, contingent upon passage of Orders 60-
09122016 and 61-09122016.  

 
3. Order 60-09122016  

Amending the Downtown Development  and TIF (Tax Increment Financing) District #10 removing the 
parcel at 62 Spring Street (Municipal Tax Map 240-Parcel 257). Public hearing. 
 

4. Order 61-09122016  
Establishing  an Economic Development and TIF (Tax Increment Financing) District #20 to designate the 
parcel at 62 Spring Street (Municipal Tax Map 240-257). Public hearing. 

 
5. Ordinance 07-09122016  

Amending the Colonial Ridge Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning map from Industrial District to 
Suburban Residential. Public hearing and first reading. 
 

VII. Executive Session  - None 
 
VIII. Reports 
  

a. Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

IX.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 
City business which is not on this agenda. 
 
X. Adjournment 
 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered 
in executive session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are 
required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a 
Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go 
into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in 
executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to 
municipal government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to 

real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature 
disclosure of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

D. Labor contracts 
E. Contemplated litigation 
F. Discussion of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the 

general public to those records is prohibited by statute; 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or 

employment purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to 
that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; 
and 

H. Consultation between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 
30-A, section 4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when 
the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  9/12/2016      
 
Orders: 59-09122016 

 60-09122016 
 61-09122016 

 

Subject:  62 Spring Street Project 
 

Information:  The City has received a request for a new credit enhancement agreement from the developer that 

would go beyond the statutory limit on the term of years for the Downtown District. Amending the original TIF 

(#10) to remove the 62 Spring Street Project allows the City to create a new stand alone TIF (#20). 
 

The developers are requesting a 76% credit enhancement for 20 years and $250,000 in Home funds. 
 

 
 

Advantages:  Mixed-Use (Featuring ground floor retail storefronts) Mixed-Income (Featuring a mix of market 

rate and workforce apartments)Beneficial to the future re-development potential of the adjacent Engine 
House property. 
 
Disadvantages: The Council approved a budget that included a component for co-op housing, this would push 
any co-op housing project funding into fiscal year 2019. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Federal funds are already approved for moderate or low income housing assistance. 
The tax shift/general fund loss is projected to be 29%. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Discussion with action to follow during the meeting 

 
Previous Meetings and History: 9/8/2014, 8/3/2015, 9/21/2015 Council Meetings and 9/6/2016 Council 
Workshop. 

 
Attachments: Home Funds Availability memo dated 09/07/06. 
 













































62 SPRING STREET CEA—DRAFT 

 

  

 

 

AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT 

between 

THE CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE 

and 

62 SPRING STREET, LP 

Original Date as of September 8, 2014 

 

AMENDED AND RESTATED DATE: _________, 2016 



 

 i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS .........................................................................................................1 
Section 1.1.  Definitions.......................................................................................................1 
Section 1.2.  Interpretation and Construction. .....................................................................3 

ARTICLE II DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUND AND FUNDING REQUIREMENTS .4 
Section 2.1.  Creation of Development Program Fund. .......................................................4 
Section 2.2.  Captured Assessed Value; Deposits into Development Program Fund. .........4 

Section 2.3.  Use of Monies in Development Program Fund. .............................................4 
Section 2.4.  Monies Held in Segregated Account. .............................................................4 

ARTICLE III PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS ...............................................................................4 
Section 3.1.  Company Payments. .......................................................................................5 
Section 3.2.  Failure to Make Payment. ...............................................................................5 
Section 3.3.  Manner of Payments. ......................................................................................5 
Section 3.4.  Limited Obligation. .........................................................................................5 

ARTICLE IV FURTHER INSTRUMENTS AND ACCESS TO RECORDS .........................6 
Section 4.1.  Further Instruments. ........................................................................................6 

Section 4.2.  Access to Books and Records. ........................................................................6 

ARTICLE V DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES .............................................................................6 
Section 5.1.  Events of Default. ...........................................................................................6 

Section 5.2.  Remedies on Default. ......................................................................................7 
Section 5.3.  Remedies Cumulative. ....................................................................................7 

ARTICLE VI EFFECTIVE DATE, TERM AND TERMINATION ........................................8 
Section 6.1.  Effective Date and Term. ................................................................................8 

Section 6.2.  Cancellation and Expiration of Term. .............................................................8 

ARTICLE VII ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE OF 62 SPRING STREET'S INTEREST ....8 
Section 7.1.  Pledge and/or Assignment. .............................................................................8 

Section 7.2.  Tax Obligation of 62 SPRING STREET, Lessees, Assigns and Successors. 

……………...9 

ARTICLE VIII MISCELLANEOUS ...........................................................................................9 
Section 8.1.  Successors. ......................................................................................................9 
Section 8.2.  Parties-in-Interest. ...........................................................................................9 

Section 8.3.  Severability. ....................................................................................................9 
Section 8.4.  No Personal Liability of Officials of the City. ..............................................10 

Section 8.5.  Counterparts. .................................................................................................10 
Section 8.6.  Governing Law. ............................................................................................10 
Section 8.7.  Amendments. ................................................................................................10 
Section 8.8.  Integration. ....................................................................................................10 
Section 8.9.  Dispute Resolution. .......................................................................................10 
Section 8.10. Dismissal of Lawsuit. ..................................................................................11 



 

 ii 

Section 8.11. Notices. ........................................................................................................11 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

Exhibit 1 Copy of Exhibit A from Development Program – District Map



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

1 

 

THIS CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT dated as of ___________, 2016, 

between the City of Auburn, a municipal corporation located in Auburn, County of 

Androscoggin and State of Maine, with offices at 60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine 04210 

(hereinafter "the City"), and 62 Spring Street, LP (“62 SPRING STREET”), a limited 

partnership, with principal place of business of 20 Great Falls Plaza, Auburn, ME 04210. 

WITNESSETH THAT 

 

WHEREAS, on September 12, 2016, and pursuant to the Act, the City Council of the 

City at a meeting duly called and held, adopted an order that designated a tax increment 

financing (“TIF”) district: the 62 Spring Street Municipal Development and Tax Increment 

Financing District (_______ acres) (the “TIF District”); and 

WHEREAS, on September 12, 2016, the City of Auburn adopted a development 

programs: the 62 Spring Street Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 

Development Program (the “Development Program”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of DECD reviewed and approved the District and the 

Development Program pursuant to approval letters dated DATE; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Auburn Development Program will be considered by the City 

contemporaneous with this Credit Enhancement Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, within the Development Program, and as contemplated thereby, the City 

proposed to execute a credit enhancement agreement with 62 SPRING STREET; and 

WHEREAS, the City and 62 SPRING STREET desire and intend that this Credit 

Enhancement Agreement be and constitute the 62 SPRING STREET credit enhancement 

agreement contemplated by and described in the Development Program; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and in consideration of the 

mutual promises and covenants set forth herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1.  Definitions.   

The terms defined in this Article I shall, for all purposes of this Agreement, have the 

meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

“62 Spring Street Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District” means 

the .81-acre 62 Spring Street Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District as 

more fully defined by the Development Program. 

 

“Act” means chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes and regulations 

adopted thereunder, as amended from time to time. 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

2 

 

 “Agreement” shall mean this Credit Enhancement Agreement between the City and 62 

SPRING STREET dated as of the date set forth above, as such may be amended from time to 

time. 

“Development Program Fund” means the development program fund described in the 

Financial Plan of the Development Program into which the Tax Increment Revenues are to be 

deposited, established and maintained pursuant to the Development Programs and Article II 

hereof. 

 

 “Captured Assessed Value” means the amount, stated as a percentage, of the Increased 

Assessed Value of the 62 SPRING STREET Property that is retained in the District in each Tax 

Year during the term of the District, as specified in Section 2.2 hereof. 

 

“Commissioner” means the Commissioner of the Maine Department of Economic and 

Community Development. 

“Current Assessed Value” means the then-current assessed value of the 62 SPRING 

STREET Property located in the District as determined by the City Tax Assessor as of April 1 of 

each Tax Year during the term of this Agreement. 

“Development Program” means the development program and financial plan for the 

District adopted by the City entitled the “62 Spring Street Municipal Development and Tax 

Increment Financing District Development Program”. 

 

“District” means the 62 Spring Street Municipal Development and Tax Increment 

Financing District (.81 acres), designated by the City on September 12, 2016, a map of which is 

attached as Exhibit A to the Development Program. 

 

 “Effective Date of the Development Program” means the date of final approval of the 

Development Program by the Commissioner pursuant to the Act. 

“Financial Plan” means the financial plan described in the “Financial Plan” Section of the 

Development Program. 

“Fiscal Year” means July 1 to June 30 each year or such other fiscal year as the City may 

from time to time establish.  

“Increased Assessed Value” means, for each Fiscal Year during the term of this 

Agreement, the amount by which the Current Assessed Value for such year exceeds the Original 

Assessed Value.  If the Current Assessed Value is less than or equal to the Original Assessed 

Value in any given Tax Year, there is no Increased Assessed Value in that year. 

“62 SPRING STREET Property” means real property owned by 62 SPRING STREET 

within the District. 

“Original Assessed Value” means four hundred seventy-four thousand and three hundred 

dollars ($474,300), the assessed value of the District as of March 31, 2016 (April 1, 2015). 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

3 

 

“Project” means the mixed use and mixed income housing project as described in the 

Development Program. 

“Property Taxes” means any and all ad valorem property taxes levied, charged or 

assessed against real property located in the District by the City, or on its behalf. 

“State” means the State of Maine. 

“Tax Increment Revenues” means that portion of all real property taxes assessed and paid 

to the City in any Tax Year, in excess of any state, or special district tax, upon the Captured 

Assessed Value.    

“Tax Payment Date” means the later of the date(s) on which property taxes levied by the 

City are due and payable from owners of property located within the City, or are actually paid to 

the City with respect to taxable property located within the District. 

“Tax Year” shall have the meaning given such term in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5222(18), as 

amended, to wit:  April 1 to March 31. 

“City” shall have the meaning given such term in the first paragraph hereto. 

Section 1.2.  Interpretation and Construction. 

In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(a) The terms “hereby,” “hereof,” “hereto,” “herein,” “hereunder” and any similar 

terms, as used in this Agreement, refer to this Agreement, and the term “hereafter” means after, 

and the term “heretofore” means before, the date of delivery of this Agreement. 

(b) Words importing a particular gender mean and include correlative words of every 

other gender and words importing the singular number mean and include the plural number and 

vice versa. 

(c) Words importing persons mean and include firms, associations, partnerships 

(including limited partnerships), trusts, corporations and other legal entities, including public or 

governmental bodies, as well as any natural persons. 

(d) Any headings preceding the texts of the several Articles and Sections of this 

Agreement, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be 

solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement, nor shall 

they affect its meaning, construction or effect. 

(e) All approvals, consents and acceptances required to be given or made by any 

signatory hereto shall not be withheld unreasonably. 

(f) All notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing and, unless a certain 

number of days is specified, within a reasonable time. 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

4 

 

(g) If any clause, provision or Section of this Agreement shall be ruled invalid by any 

court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause, provision or Section shall not affect 

any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

ARTICLE II 

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUND AND FUNDING REQUIREMENTS 

 

Section 2.1.  Creation of Development Program Fund. 

The City hereby confirms the creation and establishment of a segregated fund in the name 

of the City designated as the “Development Program Fund” pursuant to, and in accordance with 

the terms and conditions of, the Development Program and 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5227(3).  The 

Development Program Fund shall be used to fund payments to 62 SPRING STREET.  The 

Development Program Fund is pledged to and charged with the payment of costs in the manner 

and priority provided in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5227(3)(B) and as set forth in Section 3.1(b) below.       

 

Section 2.2.  Captured Assessed Value; Deposits into Development Program Fund.  

(a) Each year during the term of this Agreement and for each of the years between 

July 1, 2017 and the Effective Date of the Development Program (hereinafter “CEA Years”), the 

City shall retain in the District seventy-six percent (76%) of the Increased Assessed Value as 

Captured Assessed Value.   

 

(b) For each of the CEA Years, the City shall deposit into the Development Program 

Fund contemporaneously with each payment of Property Taxes during the term of this 

Agreement an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of that portion of the property tax 

payment constituting Tax Increment Revenues.   

 

Section 2.3.  Use of Monies in Development Program Fund. 

All monies in the Development Program Fund that are allocable to and/or deposited in 

the Development Program Fund shall in all cases be used and applied to fund fully the City's 

payment obligations to 62 SPRING STREET, as described in Articles II and III hereof, but in all 

cases 62 SPRING STREET must use such monies for approved project costs under the Act. 

Section 2.4.  Monies Held in Segregated Account. 

All monies required to be deposited with or paid into the Development Program Fund 

under the provisions hereof and the provisions of the Development Program shall be held by the 

City for the uses specified in the Development Program.  Interest earnings thereon shall be 

retained by the City for the City’s own use. 

ARTICLE III 

PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 

 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

5 

 

Section 3.1.  Company Payments.    

(a) The City agrees to pay 62 SPRING STREET up to all amounts then on deposit in 

the Development Program Fund, on or before either thirty (30) days following the Tax Payment 

Date.   

  

  (b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if, with respect to any 

Tax Payment Date, any portion of the property taxes assessed against real property located in the 

District remain unpaid, because of a valuation dispute or otherwise, the City shall be under no 

obligation to pay 62 SPRING STREET’s share of the Tax Increment Revenues to 62 SPRING 

STREET.  In such a circumstance, the property taxes actually paid with respect to such Tax 

Payment Date shall be applied to taxes due on account of Original Assessed Value.     

Section 3.2.  Failure to Make Payment. 

(a) In the event the City should fail to, or be unable to, make any of the payments at 

the time and in the amount required under the foregoing provisions of this Article III including in 

the event that the amount deposited into Development Program Fund is insufficient to reimburse 

62 SPRING STREET for the full amount due to 62 SPRING STREET under this Agreement, the 

amount or installment so unpaid shall continue as a limited obligation of the City, under the 

terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, until the amount unpaid shall have been fully paid.   

Section 3.3.  Reserved. 

 

Section 3.4.  Limited Obligation. 

 The City’s obligations of payment hereunder shall be limited obligations of the City 

payable solely from Tax Increment Revenues pledged therefor under this Agreement.  The City’s 

obligations hereunder shall not constitute a general debt or a general obligation or charge against 

or pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the City, the State of Maine, or of any 

municipality or political subdivision thereof, but shall be payable solely from that portion of Tax 

Increment Revenues payable to 62 SPRING STREET hereunder, whether or not actually 

deposited into Development Program Fund in the Development Program Fund.  This Agreement 

shall not directly, indirectly or contingently obligate the City, the State of Maine, or any other 

City or political subdivision to levy or to pledge any form of taxation whatever therefor or to 

make any appropriation for their payment, excepting the pledge of the Tax Increment Revenues 

established under this Agreement.  

 

 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

6 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

FURTHER INSTRUMENTS AND BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 

Section 4.1.  Further Instruments. 

The City shall, upon the reasonable request of 62 SPRING STREET, from time to time 

execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may be reasonable 

and as may be required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that no 

such instruments or actions shall pledge the credit of the City; and provided further that the cost 

of executing and delivering such further instruments (including the reasonable and related costs 

of counsel to the City with respect thereto) shall be borne exclusively by 62 SPRING STREET.   

Section 4.2.  Access to Books and Records. 

(a)   All non-confidential books, records and documents in the possession of the City 

relating to the District, the Development Program, this Agreement and the monies, revenues and 

receipts on deposit or required to be deposited into Development Program Fund shall at all 

reasonable times and upon reasonable notice be open to inspection by 62 SPRING STREET, its 

agents and employees.  

(b)   All non-confidential books, records, lease agreements and documents in the 

possession of 62 SPRING STREET relating to the District, the Development Program, this 

Agreement and the monies, revenues and receipts used from the Development Program Fund 

shall at all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice be open to inspection by City, its agents 

and employees. 

ARTICLE V 

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

 

Section 5.1.  Events of Default. 

Each of the following events shall constitute and be referred to in this Agreement as an 

“Event of Default”: 

(a) Any failure by the City to pay any amounts due to 62 SPRING STREET when the 

same shall become due and payable; 

(b) Any failure by the City to make deposits into Development Program Fund as and 

when due; 

(c) Any failure by the City or 62 SPRING STREET to observe and perform in all 

material respects any covenant, condition, agreement or provision contained herein on the part of 

the City or 62 SPRING STREET to be observed or performed, which failure is not cured within 

thirty (30) days following written notice thereof; 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

7 

 

(d) If a decree or order of a court or agency or supervisory authority having 

jurisdiction in the premises of the appointment of a conservator or receiver or liquidator of, any 

insolvency, readjustment of debt, marshaling of assets and liabilities or similar proceedings, or 

for the winding up or liquidation of the City’s affairs shall have been entered against the City or 

the City shall have consented to the appointment of a conservator or receiver or liquidator in any 

such proceedings of or relating to the City or of or relating to all or substantially all of its 

property, including without limitation the filing of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy by the City 

or the failure by the City to have an involuntary petition in bankruptcy dismissed within a period 

of ninety (90) consecutive days following its filing or in the event an order for release has been 

entered under the Bankruptcy Code with respect to the City; 

(e)  If any secured lender of 62 SPRING STREET accelerates the indebtedness owed 

to it; 

(f)   If any written representation or warranty given to the City by 62 SPRING 

STREET is knowingly incorrect or incomplete in any material respect, other than statements 

made about or in agreements with the City that were later changed by mutual consent; and 

(g) If 62 SPRING STREET fails to maintain adequate surety bonding during 

construction at the levels and terms as may be required from time to time by the 62 SPRING 

STREET’s secured lenders and/or 62 SPRING STREET allows mechanics’ liens to encumber 

the Project for a period of more than sixty (60) days. 

Section 5.2.  Remedies on Default. 

Subject to the provisions contained in Section 8.13, whenever any Event of Default 

described in Section 5.1 hereof shall have occurred and be continuing, the nondefaulting party, 

following the expiration of any applicable cure period, shall have all rights and remedies 

available to it at law or in equity, including the rights and remedies available to a secured party 

under the laws of the State of Maine, and may take whatever action as may be necessary or 

desirable to collect the amount then due and thereafter to become due, to specifically enforce the 

performance or observance of any obligations, agreements or covenants of the nondefaulting 

party under this Agreement and any documents, instruments and agreements contemplated 

hereby or to enforce any rights or remedies available hereunder. Further, the non-defaulting party 

may elect to terminate this Agreement upon 30 days’ written notice to the defaulting party. 

Section 5.3.  Remedies Cumulative. 

Subject to the provisions of Section 8.13 below concerning dispute resolution, no remedy herein 

conferred upon or reserved to any party is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy 

or remedies but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every 

other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity or by 

statute.  Delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Events of Default to 

insist upon the strict performance of any of the covenants and agreements herein set forth or to 

exercise any rights or remedies upon the occurrence of an Event of Default shall not impair any 

such right or power or be considered or taken as a waiver or relinquishment for the future of the 

right to insist upon and to enforce, from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient, 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

8 

 

by injunction or other appropriate legal or equitable remedy, strict compliance by the parties 

hereto with all of the covenants and conditions hereof, or of the rights to exercise any such rights 

or remedies, if such Events of Default be continued or repeated. 

ARTICLE VI 

EFFECTIVE DATE, TERM AND TERMINATION 

 

Section 6.1.  Effective Date and Term. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement is conditioned 

upon receipt of the Commissioner’s unconditional approval of the City’s designation of the 

District and adoption of the Development Program.  Following execution and delivery of this 

Agreement, the Agreement shall not be or become binding and enforceable until receipt of such 

unconditional approval.  Upon receipt of such approval, this Agreement shall remain in full force 

from the Effective Date of the Development Program and shall expire June 30, 2037 or sooner 

upon the payment of all amounts due to 62 SPRING STREET hereunder and the performance of 

all obligations on the part of the City hereunder, unless even sooner terminated pursuant to 

Section 3.4 or any other applicable provision of this Agreement.  

The City may terminate this Agreement by delivering written notice of such termination 

to 62 SPRING STREET in the event that 62 SPRING STREET does not receive a certificate of 

occupancy for the project by June 30, 2020. 

Section 6.2.  Cancellation and Expiration of Term. 

At the acceleration, termination or other expiration of this Agreement in accordance with 

the provisions of this Agreement, the City and 62 SPRING STREET shall each execute and 

deliver such documents and take or cause to be taken such actions as may be necessary to 

evidence the termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VII 

ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE OF 62 SPRING STREET'S INTEREST 

 

Section 7.1.  Pledge and/or Assignment. 

The City hereby acknowledges that 62 SPRING STREET may pledge, assign and grant a 

security interest in its right, title and interest in, to and under this Agreement as collateral for 

financing by a bank or financial institution to 62 SPRING STREET for the Project, although no 

obligation is hereby imposed on 62 SPRING STREET to make such assignment or pledge.  

Recognizing this possibility, the City does hereby consent and agree to the pledge and 

assignment of and the grant of a security interest in all 62 SPRING STREET’s right, title and 

interest in, to and under this Agreement and in, and to the payments to be made to 62 SPRING 

STREET hereunder, to third parties as collateral or security for indebtedness or otherwise, on 

one or more occasions during the term hereof.  The City agrees upon request to execute and 

deliver any assignments, pledge agreements, consents or other confirmations required by the 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

9 

 

prospective pledgee or assignee or secured party, including without limitation recognition of the 

pledgee or assignee or secured party as the holder of all right, title and interest herein and as the 

payee of amounts due and payable hereunder and any and all such other documentation as shall 

confirm to such pledgee or assignee or secured party the position of such assignee or pledgee or 

secured party and the irrevocable and binding nature of this Agreement, and provide to the 

pledgee or assignee such rights and/or remedies as the parties may reasonably deem necessary 

for establishing, perfection and protection of its interest herein.  62 SPRING STREET shall be 

responsible for the City’s necessary and reasonable costs of counsel with respect to any such 

pledge or assignment. 

 

Section 7.2. Transfer 

Except as specified in Section 7.1 hereof, 62 SPRING STREET shall not transfer or 

assign any portion of its rights in, to and under this Agreement without the prior written consent 

of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.    

ARTICLE VIII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Section 8.1.  Successors. 

In the event of the dissolution, merger or consolidation of the City or 62 SPRING 

STREET, the covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements set forth herein, by or on behalf 

of or for the benefit of such party shall bind or inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns 

thereof from time to time and any entity, officer, board, commission, agency or instrumentality 

to whom or to which any power or duty of such party shall be transferred.  Notwithstanding this 

Subsection 8.1, unless the City affirmatively approves of such action, the City shall have the 

unilateral right to terminate this Agreement upon the dissolution, merger or consolidation of 62 

SPRING STREET, and if it exercises such right shall not be obligated to comply with this 

Agreement thereafter. 

Section 8.2.  Parties-in-Interest. 

Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, nothing in this Agreement expressed or 

implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corporation other 

than the City and 62 SPRING STREET any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this 

Agreement, it being intended that this Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of 

the City and 62 SPRING STREET. 

Section 8.3.  Severability. 

In case any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall, for any reason, be held 

to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this 

Agreement and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid 

provision had not been contained herein. 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

10 

 

Section 8.4.  No Personal Liability of Officials of the City. 

(a) No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of the City contained herein 

shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation or obligation of any present or future elected or 

appointed official, officer, agent, servant or employee of the City in his or her individual 

capacity, and neither the City Council nor any official, officer, employee or agent of the City 

shall be liable personally with respect to this Agreement or be subject to any personal liability or 

accountability by reason hereof. 

(b) No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of 62 SPRING STREET 

contained herein shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation or obligation of any present or 

future officer, agent, servant or employee of 62 SPRING STREET in his or her individual 

capacity, and no official, officer, employee or agent of 62 SPRING STREET shall be liable 

personally with respect to this Agreement or be subject to any personal liability or accountability 

by reason hereof. 

Section 8.5.  Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so 

executed and delivered, shall be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but 

one and the same Agreement. 

Section 8.6.  Governing Law. 

The laws of the State of Maine shall govern the construction and enforcement of this 

Agreement. 

Section 8.7.  Condition; Amendments. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or otherwise, this Agreement shall be 

given no force or effect unless and until the credit enhancement by and between the City and 

Auburn Housing Development Corporation dated September 8, 2014 shall have been terminated 

by the parties to such agreement.  This Agreement is intended to supersede and fully replace the 

September 8, 2014 credit enhancement agreement.  This Agreement may be amended only with 

the concurring written consent of both of the parties hereto.    

Section 8.8.  Integration. 

This Agreement completely and fully supersedes all other prior or contemporaneous 

understandings or agreements, both written and oral, between the City and 62 SPRING STREET 

relating to the specific subject matter of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated 

hereby. 

Section 8.9.  Dispute Resolution. 

In the event of a dispute regarding this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by it, 

the parties hereto will use all reasonable efforts to resolve the dispute on an amicable basis.  If 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

11 

 

the dispute is not resolved on that basis within sixty (60) days after one party first brings the 

dispute to the attention of the other party, then either party may refer the dispute for resolution by 

one arbitrator mutually agreed to by the parties, and judgment on the award rendered by the 

arbitrator may be entered in any Maine state court having jurisdiction.  Any such arbitration will 

take place in Auburn, Maine or such other location as mutually agreed by the parties.  The 

parties acknowledge that arbitration shall be the sole mechanism for dispute resolution under this 

Agreement.  Provided however, that in the event the parties are unable to agree, within a 

reasonable period, on the selection of an arbitrator, either party may file suit to resolve the 

dispute in any court having jurisdiction within the State of Maine. This arbitration clause shall 

not bar the City’s assessment or collection of property taxes in accordance with law, including by 

judicial proceedings, including tax lien thereof. 

 

Section 8.10.  Reserved. 

 

Section 8.11.  Notices. 

All notices, certificates, requests, requisitions or other communications by the City or 62 

SPRING STREET pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given 

and shall be deemed given when mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed as 

follows: 

If to the City: 

 

City Manager 

City of Auburn 

60 Court Street 

Auburn, Maine 04210 

 

With a copy to: 

 

Shana Cook Mueller, Esq. 

Bernstein Shur 

100 Middle Street 

P.O. Box 9729 

Portland, Maine  04104-5029 

 

If to 62 SPRING STREET: 

   

Executive Director 

62 SPRING STREET 

156 Main Street 

Auburn, ME 04011 

 

With a copy to: 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

12 

 

 

 Counsel for 62 SPRING STREET 

 

 

Either of the parties may, by notice given to the other, designate any further or different 

addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates, requests or other communications shall be 

sent hereunder. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and 62 SPRING STREET have caused this Agreement to 

be executed in their respective corporate names and their respective corporate seals to be 

hereunto affixed and attested by the duly authorized officers, all as of the date first above written. 

 

WITNESS:     CITY OF AUBURN 

________________________________ By:_________________________________ 

Name: Denis D’Auteuil 

Its City Manager Duly Authorized by the City 

Council on September 12, 2016 

 

WITNESS: AUBURN HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

________________________________ By:___________________________ 

Name:  Richard S. Whiting 

Its Executive Director 

 

 

 



62 SPRING STREET CEA— DRAFT 

 

13 

 

Exhibit 1: Map of District 











































































CITY OF AUBURN 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Auburn will hold a public hearing 
on September 12, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter at the City Council 
Chambers in the Auburn Hall Building at 60 Court Street, Auburn Maine, for purposes of 
receiving public comments on the following: 
 

1. Amendment to Downtown Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
#10 to remove the parcel at 62 Spring Street, (Municipal Tax Map 240- Parcel 257) 
from the District pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the 
Maine Revised Statutes, as amended. A map of the Downtown Tax Increment 
Financing District is on file with the City Clerk and it is generally located in Auburn’s 
Downtown and ADAPT Plan areas from Minot Avenue to the Androscoggin River.   

 
2. Establishment of an Economic Development and Tax Increment Financing 

District #20 to designate the parcel at 62 Spring Street, (Municipal Tax Map 240- 
Parcel 257) as TIF # 19 and the adoption of a development program for said 
Municipal Development and Tax Increment Finance District pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended.   

 
The proposed Development and Tax Increment Finance District consists of the 
entirety of said parcel totaling .81 Acres in area and is intended to offset operating 
costs in a mixed income housing project proposed for the parcel.  The proposed 
Municipal Development and Tax Increment Finance District consists of property 
within the area designated as the ADAPT area in the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 
the Downtown revitalization Plan Area. 

 
3. Establishment of an Affordable Housing Development and Tax Increment 

Financing District #21 to designate a portion of 37 Loring Avenue (Municipal Tax 
Map 211- Parcel 282) pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the 
Maine Revised Statutes, as amended.   
 
The proposed Development and Tax Increment Finance District consists of the 
westerly portion of said parcel totaling approximately 5 Acres in area and is 
intended to offset operating costs in an affordable housing project proposed for the 
parcel.  The proposed Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
consists of property within New Auburn Master Plan area in the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.   

 
A copy of the proposed development programs for the districts will be on file with the City 
Clerk and may be reviewed at the offices of the City Clerk during normal business hours. All 
interested persons are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an opportunity 
to be heard at that time. 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 59-09122016 
  
  ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the City funding request for the Spring Street 
project, contingent upon passage of Orders 60-09122016 and 61-09122016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Passage on 7/11/2016 7-0. 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 12, 2016   Order:   56-09122016* 
 
Author:  Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 
 

 

Subject:  Transfer of Forfeiture Asset – Anthony Borrome 
 
Information:   

In July 2015, agents from the Maine Drug Enforcement Agency assigned to the Lewiston Task Force Office 

conducted a stop after observing a drug deal involving a known drug dealer.  The stop occurred in the parking 

lot of Hannaford’s in the City of Saco.  Agents seized 2.3 grams of heroin from one suspect and another 9.2 

grams of heroin from Mr. Borrome.  The 9.2 grams of heroin was packaged into eight individual baggies.  Mr. 

Borrome had $1,601.00 in U.S. Currency on his person.  Based on how the drugs were packaged and the large 

sum of money, it is reasonable to believe that Mr. Borrome was trafficking in Schedule Drugs and the money 

was proceeds from the illegal sale of drugs. 

 

Mr. Borrome was arrested and charged with the following offense: 

1.  Unlawful Trafficking in Schedule W Drugs 

 

The $1,601.00 in U.S. Currency was seized from Mr. Borrome for Criminal Forfeiture as suspected proceeds from 

the illegal sale and distribution of drugs. 
 

 
Advantages:  N/A 
 
Disadvantages: N/A 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The State of Maine, Office of the Attorney General, seeks to transfer $1,601.00 U.S. 
Currency to the Auburn Police Department. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Vote to accept the transfer of $1,601.00. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 
Attachments:  
Memo to City Manager 
Order 56-09122016 
 

 



Auburn Police Department 
Phillip L. Crowell, Jr.  |  Chief of Police 

Jason D. Moen  |  Deputy Chief of Police 
www.AuburnPD.com  |  207.333.6650 

60 Court Street  | Auburn, Maine 04210 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:   August 31, 2016  
 

To:   Howard Kroll, City Manager 
 

From:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

 

 

 

RE:  TRANSFER OF FORFEITURE ASSET – ANTHONY BORROME   

The Auburn Police Department seeks to accept the following Criminal forfeited assets: 

 

 Superior Court Criminal Action Docket No. CR-15-31    Anthoy Borrome 

 

In July 2015, agents from the Maine Drug Enforcement Agency assigned to the Lewiston Task Force Office 

conducted a stop after observing a drug deal involving a known drug dealer.  The stop occurred in the parking 

lot of Hannaford’s in the City of Saco.  Agents seized 2.3 grams of heroin from one suspect and another 9.2 

grams of heroin from Mr. Borrome.  The 9.2 grams of heroin was packaged into eight individual baggies.  Mr. 

Borrome had $1,601.00 in U.S. Currency on his person.  Based on how the drugs were packaged and the large 

sum of money, it is reasonable to believe that Mr. Borrome was trafficking in Schedule Drugs and the money 

was proceeds from the illegal sale of drugs. 

 

Mr. Borrome was arrested and charged with the following offense: 

1.  Unlawful Trafficking in Schedule W Drugs 

 

The $1,601.00 in U.S. Currency was seized from Mr. Borrome for Criminal Forfeiture as suspected proceeds from 

the illegal sale and distribution of drugs. 

 

 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 56-09122016 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby accept the transfer of $1,601.00 forfeiture assets in U.S. 
currency to the Auburn Police Department (Superior Court Criminal Action Docket No. CR-15-31 
– Anthony Borrome).    
 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 12, 2016   Order:   57-09122016* 
 
Author:  Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 
 

 

Subject:  Transfer of Forfeiture Asset – Hector Jimenez 
 
Information:   

In September 2015, the Auburn Police Department conducted a traffic safety check point.  An Auburn officer 
encountered Hector Jimenez.  While dealing with Mr. Jimenez, the officer learned his license was currently suspended.  
The officer arrested Mr. Jimenez for the violation.  During the search of  Mr. Jimenez, the officer located a plastic baggie 
containing two separate baggies of  what the officer believed to be crack cocaine.  The officer also located $1,561.00 in 
U.S. Currency.  Based on how the drugs were packaged and the large sum of  money, it’s reasonable to believe Mr. 
Jimenez was trafficking in Schedule Drugs.   
 
Mr. Jimenez was arrested and charged with the following offenses: 

 Operating After Suspension.   

 Unlawful Trafficking in Schedule W Drugs 
 

The $1,561.00 in U.S. Currency was seized from Mr. Jimenez for Criminal Forfeiture as suspected proceeds from the 
illegal sale and distribution of  drugs. 

 

 
 

Advantages:  N/A 
 
Disadvantages: N/A 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The State of Maine, Office of the Attorney General, seeks to transfer $1,561.00 U.S. 
Currency to the Auburn Police Department. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Vote to accept the transfer of $1,561.00. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 
Attachments:  
*Memo to City Manager 
*Order 57-09122016 

 



Auburn Police Department 
Phillip L. Crowell, Jr.  |  Chief of Police 

Jason D. Moen  |  Deputy Chief of Police 
www.AuburnPD.com  |  207.333.6650 

60 Court Street  | Auburn, Maine 04210 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:   August 31, 2016  
 

To:   Howard Kroll, City Manager 
 

From:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

 

 

 

RE:  TRANSFER OF FORFEITURE ASSET – HECTOR JIMENEZ   

The Auburn Police Department seeks to accept the following Criminal forfeited assets: 

 

 Superior Court Criminal Action Docket No. CR-15-1277    Hector Jimenez 

 
In September 2015, the Auburn Police Department conducted a traffic safety check point.  An Auburn officer 
encountered Hector Jimenez.  While dealing with Mr. Jimenez, the officer learned his license was currently suspended.  
The officer arrested Mr. Jimenez for the violation.  During the search of  Mr. Jimenez, the officer located a plastic baggie 
containing two separate baggies of  what the officer believed to be crack cocaine.  The officer also located $1,561.00 in 
U.S. Currency.  Based on how the drugs were packaged and the large sum of  money, it’s reasonable to believe Mr. 
Jimenez was trafficking in Schedule Drugs.   
 
Mr. Jimenez was arrested and charged with the following offenses: 

 Operating After Suspension.   

 Unlawful Trafficking in Schedule W Drugs 
 

The $1,5610.00 in U.S. Currency was seized from Mr. Jimenez for Criminal Forfeiture as suspected proceeds from the 
illegal sale and distribution of  drugs. 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 57-09122016 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby accept the transfer of $1,561.00 forfeiture assets in U.S. 
currency to the Auburn Police Department (Superior Court Criminal Action Docket No. CR-15-
1277 – Hector Jimenez).    
 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  Sept. 12, 2016  Order:  58-09122016*     
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

 

Subject:  Setting the time for opening the polls for the November 8, 2016 Election 
 

Information:   
State law requires the Municipal Officers to set the time to open the polls for each election. The polls must be opened 
no earlier than 6 a.m. and no later than 8 a.m. on election day, except that in municipalities with a population of less 
than 500, the polls must be opened no later than 10:00 a.m. It is recommended that the polls open at 7:00 A.M. in 
Auburn for the November 8, 2016 Election. 

§626. Polling times  

The following provisions apply to polling times at any election.  

1. Opening time flexible.  The polls must be opened no earlier than 6 a.m. and no later than 8 a.m. on election 
day, except that in municipalities with a population of less than 500, the polls must be opened no later than 10:00 
a.m. The municipal officers of each municipality shall determine the time of opening the polls within these limits. 
The municipal clerk shall notify the Secretary of State of the poll opening times at least 30 days before each election 
conducted under this Title.  
 

Advantages:  Opening the polls at 7:00 A.M. is consistent with past practice in Auburn and it allows additional time in 
the morning for people to have an opportunity to vote. 

 

Disadvantages: It is a long day for City Clerk staff and Election Workers who are working the full day. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Minimal – the cost for Election workers to start one hour early (under $100).   

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend Passage 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 
Attachments:  
Title 21-A Sec. 626 
Order 58-09122016 

 



Generated
12.10.2015   |  1

Maine Revised Statutes

Title 21-A: ELECTIONS

Chapter 9: CONDUCT OF ELECTIONS

§626. POLLING TIMES
The following provisions apply to polling times at any election. [1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW).]

1. Opening time flexible.  The polls must be opened no earlier than 6 a.m. and no later than 8 a.m. on
election day, except that in municipalities with a population of less than 500, the polls must be opened no
later than 10:00 a.m. The municipal officers of each municipality shall determine the time of opening the polls
within these limits. The municipal clerk shall notify the Secretary of State of the poll opening times at least 30
days before each election conducted under this Title.

[ 2011, c. 342, §18 (AMD) .]

2. Closing time fixed.  The polls must be closed at 8 p.m. on election day, except in municipalities of
population less than 100 which may close the polls after all registered voters have voted.

A. The warden shall give all voters present at the voting place at closing time the opportunity to vote.
Any person who arrives at the voting place after the time for closing the polls has passed may not vote.
[1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW).]

[ 1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW);  1985, c. 277, (AMD) .]

3. Polling times in election notice.  The municipal clerk shall state the times of opening and closing the
polls in the notice of the election.

[ 1997, c. 436, §89 (AMD) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW).  1985, c. 277, (AMD).  1985, c. 580, (AMD). 
1997, c. 436, §§88,89 (AMD).  2011, c. 342, §18 (AMD).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include the
following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects changes
made through the First Regular Session of the 127th Maine Legislature and is current through October 15, 2015. The text is subject to
change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our goal
is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve
the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 58-09122016 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby sets the time for opening the polls for the 
November 8, 2016 Election at 7:00 AM. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 12, 2016                             Ordinance 06-08152016      
 
Author:  Doug Greene, AICP, RLA  City Planner 
 
Subject: Zone Change Request for Evergreen Subaru for properties located at 16 Malibu Drive (PID # 301-006), 32 
Malibu Drive (PID # 301-007), 40 Malibu Drive (PID # 301-012), and 40 Niskayuna Street (PID # 301-004) from Suburban 
Residential District to General Business District. 
 
Information: Evergreen Subaru, currently located out Center Street, has been a successful auto dealership and has 
acquired 4 properties (listed above) that are adjacent and located on Malibu Drive and Niskayuna Street.  These 4 
properties are currently zoned Suburban Residential District and are being petitioned to have that zoning changed to 
General Business District.  The 2010 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map recommends the area requested for 
rezoning for Business Expansion Transition (BXT).  The BXT land use designation is compatible with the General Business 
District and complies with the 2010 Comprehensive Plan.   
 
The Planning Board voted unanimously (7-0) to forward a recommendation of APPROVAL on to the City Council.  The 
required Planning Board report is attached with this information sheet.    

 
Advantages:  Approving the zone change will allow Evergreen Subaru to expand its business operation.  The new zoning 
and land improvements will increase the tax assessment and revenues to the city. 
 
Disadvantages:  The expansion of General Business District into the existing Suburban Residential District will cause the 
demolition of 3 homes and create additional auto sales parking and potential buildings.  Any new development activity 
will be reviewed and approved by the Planning Board who will carefully consider any potential noise, light and visual 
impacts on the remaining residential properties in the area.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The zone change itself will not have a city budgetary impact.  The potential future development 
will create a higher taxable value to the affected land and improvements.  A potential future road closure as part of the 
business expansion may reduce city cost of service for maintaining a public road. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  The Staff and Auburn Planning Board recommend the City Council APPROVE the zoning 
map amendment of the properties listed from Suburban Residential to General Business as the request complies with 
the Future Land Use Plan of the 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Previous Meetings and History:   

 The general area between Turner and Center Street was discussed during the development of the 2010 
Comprehensive Plan.   

 July 12, 2016 Planning Board meeting- A public hearing was held (no public response) and the Planning Board 
voted 7-0 to forward a positive recommendation to the City Council.  

 8/1/2016 Council Workshop discussion and public hearing and passage of first reading on 8/15/2016. 
 

Attachments:  
1. Planning Board Report to the City Council-  
2. Staff Report and petition on Evergreen Subaru- July 12, 2016 Planning Board meeting 
3. Ordinance 06-08152016 

 
 























James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 06-08152016 
  
 BE IT ORDAINED, that the City Council hereby amends the Auburn Zoning Map from Suburban 
Residential District to General Business District for the following properties; 16 Malibu Drive 
(PID # 301-006), 32 Malibu Drive (PID # 301-007), 40 Malibu Drive (PID # 301-012) and 40 
Niskayuna Street (PID # 301-004) and as shown on the attached map, pursuant to Chapter 60, 
Article XVII, Division 2 of the Ordinances of the City of Auburn. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Passage of first reading on 8/15/2016 4-2 (Councilors Burns and Titus opposed). 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 59-09122016 
  
  ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the City funding request for the Spring Street 
project, contingent upon passage of Orders 60-09122016 and 61-09122016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Passage on 7/11/2016 7-0. 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
SEPTEMBER 12, 2016 
ORDER 60-09122016 

  
   
 WHEREAS, the City of Auburn (“the City”) designated its Downtown Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District #10 (“the Downtown District”) and adopted 
the Development Program for such district initially in 2002; and 
 WHEREAS, the City adopted the First Amendment to the development program in 2014 
in order to add acreage, add some public projects and allow the ability for the City to enter into 
credit enhancement agreements; and 
 WHEREAS, the City entered into a credit enhancement agreement dated as of 
September 8, 2014 with the Auburn Housing Development Corporation relating to the property 
known on City tax maps as Map 240, Lot 257 but the project has not yet commenced; and 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request for a new credit enhancement agreement 
from the developer of such mixed use project at the same lot, located inside the Downtown 
District, that would go beyond the statutory limit on the term of years for the Downtown 
District; and 
 WHEREAS, there is a need for economic development and for the development of 
affordable, livable housing in the City of Auburn, in the surrounding region, and in the State of 
Maine; and  
 WHEREAS, there is a need to improve and broaden the tax base in the City of Auburn; 
and to improve the general economy of the City of Auburn and the region by attracting 
business development in the Downtown District; and 
 WHEREAS, implementation of the amended, existing development program for the 
Downtown District and the development program for the new affordable housing municipal 
development and tax increment financing district will help improve and broaden the tax base in 
the City of Auburn and improve the economy in the City of Auburn and the region by attracting 
business development and creating affordable housing in the area of these districts; and 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as 
amended, the City desires to amend the Downtown District and approve the Second 
Amendment to the Downtown Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
#10 (the “Second Amendment”) in order to remove the area to be developed in the 62 Spring 
Street mixed use and affordable housing project; and  
 WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be obtained from the State of Maine 
Department of Economic and Community Development approving this Second Amendment; 
and  



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, 
MAINE: 

Section 1 The City of Auburn hereby approves the Second Amendment to the 
Downtown District and the development program for such district.  The Second Amendment 
shall be pursuant to the following findings, terms, and provisions:  

Section 2 The City Council hereby finds and determines that: 

a. This amendment to the Downtown District development program will not result 
in the Downtown District falling out of compliance with any of the conditions of 30-A M.R.S.A. 
Section 5223(3); and 

b. The pursuit of the Downtown District development program will make a 
contribution to the economic growth and wellbeing of the City of Auburn and the surrounding 
region, and will contribute to the betterment of the health, welfare, and safety of the 
inhabitants of the City of Auburn, including a broadened and improved tax base and economic 
stimulus, and therefore constitutes a good and valid public purpose.  The City has considered all 
evidence, if any, presented to it with regard to any adverse economic effects on or detriment to 
any existing business, if any, is outweighed by the contribution expected to be made through 
the amendment to the Downtown District and Downtown District development program.  

Section 3 Pursuant to the provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5227, the percentage of 
increased assessed value to be retained as captured assessed value in accordance with the 
Downtown District development program is hereby set forth in the Downtown District 
development program.  

Section 4 The City Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby 
authorized, empowered, and directed to submit the proposed Second Amendment to the 
Downtown District and the Downtown District and the development program therefor to the 
State of Maine Department for Economic and Community Development for review and 
approval pursuant to the requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226.  

Section 5 The foregoing adoption of the Second Amendment shall automatically 
become final and shall take full force and effect upon receipt by the City of approval by the 
State of Maine Department of Economic and Community Development, without requirement of 
further action by the City, the City Council, or any other party.  

Section 6 The City Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby 
authorized and empowered, at his discretion, from time to time, to make such revisions to the 
Downtown District and to the Downtown District development program as the City Manager 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

deems reasonably necessary or convenient in order to facilitate the process for review and 
approval of the Downtown District by the State of Maine Department of Economic and 
Community Development, or for any other reason, so long as such revisions are not 
inconsistent with these resolutions or the basic structure and intent of the Downtown District 
development program. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
SEPTEMBER 12, 2016 
ORDER 61-09122016 

  
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Auburn (the "City") is authorized pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 
30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended (the “Act”), to designate a specified area within 
the City as the 62 Spring Street Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
(#20) (the “District”) and adopt a development program (the “Development Program”) for the 
District pursuant to the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a need for economic development in the City of Auburn, in the 
surrounding region, and in the State of Maine; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a need to improve and broaden the tax base of the City of Auburn; and 
to improve the general economy of the City of Auburn and the surrounding region; and 
 
 WHEREAS, designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program will help 
to improve and broaden the tax base in the City of Auburn and improve the economy of the City 
of Auburn and the region by attracting business development to the District; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to designate the District and adopt the Development Program; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be obtained from the State of Maine 
Department of Economic and Community Development (the "Department"), approving the 
designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program. 
 
 ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The City of Auburn hereby designates the 62 Spring Street Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District (#20) and hereby adopts the Development 
Program for said District; such designation and adoption to be pursuant to the following findings, 
terms, and provisions: 
  
 Section 2.  The City Council hereby finds and determines that:  
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

 a. At least twenty-five percent (25%), by area, of the real property within the District, 
as hereinafter designated, is suitable for commercial uses; and 
 
 b. The total area of the District does not exceed two percent (2%) of the total 
acreage of the City, and the total area of all development districts within the City (including the 
proposed District) does not exceed five percent (5%) of the total acreage of the City; and 
 
 c. The original assessed value of all existing and proposed tax increment financing 
districts (including the proposed District) does not exceed five percent (5%) of the total value of 
equalized taxable property within the City as of the most recent April 1 for which such value is 
available; and 
 
 d. The designation of the District and adoption of the related Development Program 
will make a contribution to the economic growth and well-being of the City of Auburn and the 
surrounding region, and will contribute to the betterment of the health, welfare and safety of the 
inhabitants of the City of Auburn, including a broadened and improved tax base and economic 
stimulus, and therefore constitutes a good and valid public purpose.  The City Council has 
considered all evidence, if any, presented to it with regard to any adverse economic effect on or 
detriment to any existing business and has found and determined that such adverse economic 
effect on or detriment to any existing business, if any, is outweighed by the contribution expected 
to be made through the District and the Development Program. 
 
 Section 3.  The City Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to submit the proposed designation of the District and the proposed 
Development Program for the District to the Department for review and approval pursuant to the 
requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226; and further is authorized to execute a Credit 
Enhancement Agreement consistent with the provisions of the District’s Development Program 
as presented and approved herein, and to create the accounts and take all the actions 
described in such agreements. 
 
 Section 4.  The foregoing designation of the District and approval of the Development 
Program shall automatically become final and shall take full force and effect upon receipt by the 
City of approval of the designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program by 
the Department, without requirement of further action by the City, the City Council, or any other 
party. 
 

Section 5.  The City Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized 
and empowered, at his/her discretion, from time to time, to make such revisions to the 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Development Program as the City Manager, or his duly appointed representative, deems 
reasonably necessary or convenient in order to facilitate the process for review and approval of 
the District and/or the Development Program by the Department, or for any other reason, so long 
as such revisions are not inconsistent with these resolutions or the basic structure and intent of 
the District and the Development Program. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  August 22, 2016   Ordinance 07-09122016    
 
Author:  Doug Greene, City Planner 
 
 
Subject: Colonial Ridge PUD- Zoning Map Amendment 
 
Information: The Planning Board approved an amendment to the Colonial Ridge Planned Unit Development (PUD) at its 
July 12, 2016 meeting.  The amendment changed a condominium style development area to a 15 single family lot style 
development.  During the course of the plan review, the Staff noticed a small area (under 1 acre area) that was zoned 
Industrial.  The industrial area includes the rear portions of lots 8, 9 and a detention/open space area.  The Planning 
Board approved the plan and also initiated a zone change to correct the situation.  The lots affected by the zoning 
conflict have enough residentially zoned space for a home to be built on but the future owner would be prevented from 
having any type of residential use in the rear (Industrially zoned) part of the lots.   
 
The Planning Board took action on this zone change at its August 9th meeting and voted unanimously to forward a 
positive recommendation to the City Council to rezone portions of lots 8, 9 and a detention/open space area from 
Industrial District to Suburban Residential District. The Planning Board considered this zone change to be a corrective 
action.  

 
Advantages: Approving the zone change will allow future home owners to use their entire property in residential uses 
and correct a zoning conflict on the affected properties. 
 
Disadvantages: Having Industrial zoning on the rear of a residential property would limit its use and could cause 
difficulty in obtaining mortgage loans. 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council move the Zoning Map Amendment forward to a 1st 
reading and public hearing.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: The Auburn Planning Board considered the Colonial Ridge PUD at its July 12th and 
August 9th meetings. 
 

 
Attachments:  

1. Staff report from the August 9, 2016 Planning Board meeting. 
2. Planning Board report on the Colonial Ridge PUD Zoning Map Amendment.  
3. Mapping of the Zoning Map Amendment. 
4. Ordinance 07-09122016 

 



 
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
SEPTEMBER 12, 2016 
ORDER 61-09122016 

  
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Auburn (the "City") is authorized pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 
30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended (the “Act”), to designate a specified area within 
the City as the 62 Spring Street Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
(#20) (the “District”) and adopt a development program (the “Development Program”) for the 
District pursuant to the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a need for economic development in the City of Auburn, in the 
surrounding region, and in the State of Maine; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a need to improve and broaden the tax base of the City of Auburn; and 
to improve the general economy of the City of Auburn and the surrounding region; and 
 
 WHEREAS, designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program will help 
to improve and broaden the tax base in the City of Auburn and improve the economy of the City 
of Auburn and the region by attracting business development to the District; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to designate the District and adopt the Development Program; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be obtained from the State of Maine 
Department of Economic and Community Development (the "Department"), approving the 
designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program. 
 
 ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The City of Auburn hereby designates the 62 Spring Street Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District (#20) and hereby adopts the Development 
Program for said District; such designation and adoption to be pursuant to the following findings, 
terms, and provisions: 
  
 Section 2.  The City Council hereby finds and determines that:  
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

 a. At least twenty-five percent (25%), by area, of the real property within the District, 
as hereinafter designated, is suitable for commercial uses; and 
 
 b. The total area of the District does not exceed two percent (2%) of the total 
acreage of the City, and the total area of all development districts within the City (including the 
proposed District) does not exceed five percent (5%) of the total acreage of the City; and 
 
 c. The original assessed value of all existing and proposed tax increment financing 
districts (including the proposed District) does not exceed five percent (5%) of the total value of 
equalized taxable property within the City as of the most recent April 1 for which such value is 
available; and 
 
 d. The designation of the District and adoption of the related Development Program 
will make a contribution to the economic growth and well-being of the City of Auburn and the 
surrounding region, and will contribute to the betterment of the health, welfare and safety of the 
inhabitants of the City of Auburn, including a broadened and improved tax base and economic 
stimulus, and therefore constitutes a good and valid public purpose.  The City Council has 
considered all evidence, if any, presented to it with regard to any adverse economic effect on or 
detriment to any existing business and has found and determined that such adverse economic 
effect on or detriment to any existing business, if any, is outweighed by the contribution expected 
to be made through the District and the Development Program. 
 
 Section 3.  The City Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to submit the proposed designation of the District and the proposed 
Development Program for the District to the Department for review and approval pursuant to the 
requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226; and further is authorized to execute a Credit 
Enhancement Agreement consistent with the provisions of the District’s Development Program 
as presented and approved herein, and to create the accounts and take all the actions 
described in such agreements. 
 
 Section 4.  The foregoing designation of the District and approval of the Development 
Program shall automatically become final and shall take full force and effect upon receipt by the 
City of approval of the designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program by 
the Department, without requirement of further action by the City, the City Council, or any other 
party. 
 

Section 5.  The City Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized 
and empowered, at his/her discretion, from time to time, to make such revisions to the 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Development Program as the City Manager, or his duly appointed representative, deems 
reasonably necessary or convenient in order to facilitate the process for review and approval of 
the District and/or the Development Program by the Department, or for any other reason, so long 
as such revisions are not inconsistent with these resolutions or the basic structure and intent of 
the District and the Development Program. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











dgreene
Text Box
General Business Zone

dgreene
Text Box
Suburban Residential Zone

dgreene
Text Box
IndustrialZone

dgreene
Line

dgreene
Line

dgreene
Line



LEGAL NOTICE 

 

City of Auburn 

 
 

 

The Auburn City Council will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, September 12, 2016 at 

7:00 PM in the City Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine. 

The following proposal will be heard: 

 

Zoning map amendment in Colonial Ridge PUD for a .81 acre area of the southwest 

portion of lots 8 and 9 and an adjacent open space area from Industrial District to 

Suburban Residential District pursuant to Section 60-1445 Amendments to the Zoning 

Map.  

 

For more information contact Douglas Greene @ 333-6601 ext. 1156 or 

dgreene@auburnmaine.gov.   

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

To be placed in the Lewiston Sun Journal on Wednesday, August 31, 2016 and 

Monday, September 5, 2016. 

mailto:dgreene@auburnmaine.gov


James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 07-09122016 
  
  BE IT ORDAINED, that the City Council hereby adopts an amendment to rezone an .81 acre 
area located on Harvest Hill Lane in the Colonial Ridge PUD, consisting of the southwest 
portion of lots 8 and 9 and an adjacent open space area from Industrial District to Suburban 
Residential District pursuant to Section 60-1445, Amendments to the Zoning Map, and as 
shown on the attached map. 

 
















































	0  Agenda 9-12-2016 final
	1  Info Sheet - 62 Spring Street
	1a TIF #20
	1b  CEA with AHDC DRAFT 9-8-16
	1c  62 Spring Exhibit A District Map 9-8-16
	1d TIF #10
	1e  City Council Public Hearing Legal Notice 9 12 16 #2
	1f  Order 59-09122016 City Funding 62 Spring St
	2  Info Sheet BORROME
	2a  Memo BORROME
	2b  Order 56-09122016 BORROME
	3  Info Sheet JIMENEZ
	3a  Memo JIMENEZ
	3b  Order 57-09122016 JIMENEZ
	4  Info Sheet Time for Opening Polls
	4a  title21-Asec626
	4b  Order 58-09122016 - opening polls
	5  Minutes 8-15-2016
	6  Info Sheet - Evergreen Suburu
	6a  Evergreen Subaru Zoning
	2a  Planning Bd City Council Report Evergreen Subaru ZC 7-27-16
	2b  Evergreen Subaru Staff Report and petition 6-12-16

	6b  Ordinance 06-08152016 Evergreen Subaru
	7  Order 59-09122016 City Funding 62 Spring St
	8  Order 60-09122016 tIF 10
	9  Order 61-09122016 62 Spring #20
	10  Info Sheet - Colonial Ridge
	10  Order 61-09122016 62 Spring #20
	10a  Colonial Ridge PUD -  ZC  Staff Report
	10b  Col Ridge Zoning Conflict 1
	10c  Public Notice ColonialRidgePUD
	10d  Ordinance 07-09122016 Colonial Ridge PUD
	11  Councilor Walker Report



